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PONZI SCHEMES


1. The fifth circuit held that, in a Ponzi scheme, the “intended loss” for sentencing purposes is the amount fraudulently received from the

victim and that this number is not to be reduced by the amount of any monies repaid to the victims.

U.S. v. Deavours, 219 F.3d 400 (5th Cir. July 13, 2000).

Defendant, a financial consultant for Smith Barney, Inc., along with several others, created a “Ponzi scheme” whereby investors were defrauded to the

tune of $52,954,538. Defendant and his coconspirators took money from

investors, attracted new investors, and then partially repaid the initial investors with the funds obtained from the new investors. Defendant was charged

with and plead guilty to wire fraud and aiding and abetting in the Ponzi scheme.

On appeal to the fifth circuit, defendant complained that the district court erroneously calculated the amount of loss. The district court found that the amount of intended loss was $52,954,538, the total amount of money investors

had wired to the defendants. Defendant contends that number should be reduced by $29,375,666, the sum returned to investors in the form of payments. Such a reduction in the intended loss total would cause the defendant to be sentenced at
a lower offense level.

The court noted at the outset that although the determination of a loss is a factual finding which is reviewed for clear error, the choice of method by which the loss is determined involves an application of the sentencing guidelines, and is therefore reviewed de novo. 
After approving the aforementioned definition of what constitutes a Ponzi scheme, the courts discusses the relevance of United States v. Lauer, 148 F.3d 766 (7th Cir. 1998). That court frowned on considering the amount of any monies repaid in determining the amount of loss in a Ponzi scheme: 
“[T]he amount of the intended loss, for purposes of sentencing, is the amount that  the defendant placed at risk by misappropriating money or other property. That amount measures the gravity of the crime; that he may have hoped or even expected a miracle that would deliver his intended victim from harm is both impossible to verify and peripheral to the danger that the crime poses to the community.” 
The Deavours court adopted the Lauer reasoning. Essential to that decision was the court’s apparent disgust with a loss calculation method which would reward the schemers for a partial repayment–a payment made only to bolster the investors confidence in the fraudulent scheme. The court reasoned that the repayment of apparent profits would not only legitimize the scheme in the mind of the unwitting investor, but it might also induce him to ride the winning streak and invest even more into the scheme. The court therefore refused to take into account the repayments when determining the amount of intended loss. 
In coming to its decision, the court rejected defendant’s invitation to either account for the money repaid or to do a victim by victim analysis vis a vis intended losses. In rejecting those approaches, the court noted neither approach recognizes the deciding element in its approach; namely, “that the mitigation of that risk by the schemers arose not as penance or extrication but as amplification of the fraudulent scheme.”

MONEY LAUNDERING

2. When legitimate funds are commingled with tainted funds in a bank account, individual withdrawals will be deemed comprised of tainted money if the aggregate amount withdrawn from the account exceeds the

amount of clean funds.

United States v. Davis, 226 F.3d 346 (5th Cir. August 29, 2000).

Defendant was involved in an advanced-fee scheme in which he duped clients into believing that for a fee, he would obtain funding for the clients’ business operations; he readily accepted the fees, but never obtained the funding.

Defendant was tried and convicted in the district court of one count of conspiracy, two counts of wire fraud, two counts of travel and transportation of securities for fraudulent purposes, and three counts of money laundering. On appeal, he complained that, inter alia, there was insufficient evidence to convict him of either conspiracy to commit wire fraud or of money laundering. 
To sustain a conviction for money laundering, 18 U.S.C. § 1957 requires there be proof of a transaction involving more than $10,000 of tainted funds. Evidence adduced at trial showed defendant wrote several checks (transactions) on accounts that were comprised of both “clean” funds and fraudulently obtained funds. 
Specifically at issue was a check defendant wrote for $25,000. That check was drawn from an account into which approximately $18,000 of clean funds had first been deposited.  Afterwards, but before the $25,000 check was cashed, $100,000 of tainted funds were deposited into the account. Defendant argued that because the $25,000 check was comprised of only $7,000 of tainted funds–below the § 1957 $10,000 minimum–the evidence of money laundering was legally insufficient.

The court noted that in its prior decisions regarding what it called the “commingling problem,” it had developed a rule: “[W]hen the aggregate amount

withdrawn from an account containing commingled funds exceeds the clean funds, individual withdrawals may be said to be of tainted money, even if a particular withdrawal was less than the amount of clean money in the account.”

The court declared this rule necessary to prevent sophisticated criminals from circumventing the money laundering statute. The court then found that because the government had proved aggregate withdrawals of more than $10,000 above the available clean funds, the evidence of money laundering was legally sufficient.

RICO

3. The fifth circuit held that RICO forfeiture provisions could be applied retroactively via the “relation back” doctrine so as to divest wife of what would otherwise be her share of community property.

United States v. Martinez, 228 F.3d 587 (5th Cir. September 22, 2000).

Defendant was found guilty of multiple violations of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO). After entering the guilty verdict, forfeiture proceedings concerning property derived from the racketeering activity began.

Defendant’s wife then filed a claim in the statutorily allowed ancillary proceeding where she claimed a Texas community property law interest in numerous items the government claimed were subject to forfeiture. The gravamen of her complaint was that the government was wrongfully attempting to obtain through the forfeiture proceedings property acquired before the RICO conspiracy commenced. 

The court district court dismissed the majority of wife’s claims without giving her a hearing. Wife complained to the fifth circuit that she was entitled to a hearing. In overruling this point of error, the court declared that a hearing is required only when material facts are in dispute. 
Wife’s second point of error was that she had an undivided ½ interest in various properties involved in the forfeiture proceedings. In order to prevail on this claim, wife needed to show that she was either a bona fide purchaser for value or that she had a vested interest in the property when the criminal acts took place. 
In overruling this point, the fifth circuit employs the “relation back” doctrine. Applying this doctrine to the facts led the court to declare that title vested in the government to the proceeds of the RICO activities at the time defendant engaged in those activities. Because the properties in dispute were all purchased with funds generated by the RICO activities, those properties never became community property; rather, title to the properties automatically vested with the

government at the moment they were acquired.

MONEY LAUNDERING

4. The connection between laundered funds and interstate activity need only be slight to sustain a conviction under the federal money laundering statute.

U.S. v. Meshack, 225 F.3d 556 (5th Cir. August 28, 2000).

Defendant Meshack owned a barbeque restaurant in Temple, Texas. Along with his girlfriend, codefendant Parker, Meshack ran a cocaine trafficking organization and used the restaurant as the center of operations. Defendants Meshack,

Parker, et. al were convicted in the district court of, inter alia, conspiracy to commit money laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1956. On appeal to the
fifth circuit, Meshack and Parker challenged the money laundering convictions.

Meshack argued first that the government failed to make a sufficient connection between his conduct and interstate commerce to support the conviction

for conspiracy to commit money laundering. The factual predicate the government relied on in prosecuting Meshack for money laundering

involved Meshack’s purchase of a Ford pickup truck and his assumption of rental payments on an apartment inhabited by codefendant Parker. The government contended at trial and again on appeal that the truck was purchased with drug proceeds and used in drug sales. Likewise, the government argued that the apartment was rented with drug proceeds and that the apartment itself was the

location of many acts related to the drug organization. 
In rejecting Meshack’s insufficient nexus claim, the court noted at the outset that the legislative history of § 1956(c)(4) makes plain that the moneylaundering statute “is intended to reflect the full exercise of Congress’ power under the Commerce Clause.” Accordingly, “the link to interstate or foreign commerce need only be slight.”

The court then declared that because of the interrelatedness between the drug organization and the purchase and use of the pickup truck, a sufficient nexus existed under the Commerce Clause. The court also relied on Russell v. United

States, 471 U.S. 858 (1985), which held that renting property implicates interstate commerce.

BRIBERY

5. United States Supreme Court holds that Medicare funding represents “benefits” for purposes of federal bribery statute.

Fischer v. United States, 120 S. Ct. 1780 (May 15, 2000).

For his role in fraudulently securing a loan from a municipal hospital authority that received Medicare funds, defendant was convicted of defrauding an institution which receives benefits under a federal assistance program, 18 U.S.C. § 666(a)(1)(A), and of paying a kickback to one of its agents, § 666(a)(2). Defendant claimed on appeal to the U.S. Supreme Court that the government failed to prove that the municipal hospital authority received “benefits in excess of $10,000 under a Federal Program,” as required by 18 U.S.C. § 666(b).
It was undisputed that the hospital authority received in excess of $10,000 per year in Medicare funding from the federal government. The sole issue for the Court to determine was whether the Medicare monies provided to the hospital authority constituted a “benefit” to the hospital within the meaning of the federal bribery statute. Two dueling views emerge in the opinion. Defendant contended

that the only beneficiaries of the Medicare program were the elderly and disabled. Conversely, the government asserted that because the federal

government was the source of payments, the hospital authority should be deemed a beneficiary. 
In examining the broad and far-reaching objectives of Medicare, the Court determined that while the patient is obviously a beneficiary, so too is the provider. At the core of this determination is the recognition that while patient care is the paramount goal of Medicare, the general improvement of recipient hospitals is also a significant aim of the program. Thus, because defendant defrauded an institution that received benefits in excess of $10,000 in federal assistance,

his conviction was upheld. 
In a dissent joined by Justice Scalia, Justice Thomas takes issue with the Court’s holding that Medicare funds cause a benefit to enure to the hospital authority. He opines that the patient is the only true beneficiary of the program and uses the text of the Medicare Act to bolster his argument. Further, he observes the anomaly of declaring the hospital authority and other health care providers “beneficiaries” even though they are systematically
under-compensated by Medicare.

MAIL FRAUD

6. Pre issuance licenses are not property in the hands of the state that issues them and cannot, therefore, be property obtained fraudulently

for purposes of the mail fraud statute.

Cleveland v. United States, 2000 WL 1663649 (November 7, 2000).

Defendant applied for a license from the state of Louisiana to operate video poker machines. During the application process, he and a partner made

certain false representations. Those falsehoods were later discovered and defendant was convicted of violating the federal mail fraud statute, 18 U.S.C.

§ 1341. On appeal to the United States Supreme Court, defendant claimed that false statements made in an application for a state licence do not implicate the mail fraud statute because preissuance licenses are not property in the hands of

the state. 
To obtain a conviction under § 1341, the government must show that the defendant schemed to obtain money or property under false representations or promises. Thus, the issue was whether the licenses were property when they

existed in the hands of the state of Louisiana. 
After tracing the history of the mail fraud statute, the court determined that because Louisiana’s interest in the licenses was regulatory as opposed to proprietary, the licences were not property when held by the state. Therefore, notwithstanding defendant’s false representations during the application process, his conviction for mail fraud

could not be affirmed because he had not schemed to deprive the state of money or property.

TAX EVASION & CONSPIRACY TO DEFRAUD THE UNITED STATES

7. Interest and penalties are not to be included it determining whether a tax deficiency exists. Also, the government usually may charge conspiracy to defraud notwithstanding the availability of a more specific charge.

U.S. v. Wright, 211 F.3d 233 (5th Cir. April 27, 2000).

Defendant was convicted of tax evasion under I.R.C. § 7201. He complained on appeal that because the only money he owed the IRS was that of interest and penalties, he had no underlying tax deficiency and, therefore, could not be convicted of tax evasion. Because § 7201 does not define tax deficiency, the fifth circuit examined the Sentencing Guidelines and other parts of the tax code to

determine whether interest and penalties should be considered in making the tax deficiency determination. The court held that penalties and interest were not to be included in the tax deficiency formula. 
Defendant was also convicted of conspiracy to defraud the United States under 18 U.S.C. § 371. He argued on appeal that the indictment differed from the proof presented at trial. Specifically, he contended he should have been charged with the specific offense of concealing income or assets from the IRS rather than the more general offense of conspiracy to defraud. He cites United States v.Minarik, 875 F.2d 1186 (6th  Cir. 1989) for the proposition that the government must charge a specific offense under § 371 if it can. 
In rejecting defendant’s argument, the court noted that Minarik has been limited by the courts to cases where the taxpayer’s duties are technical, the violation was too isolated to comprise a “conspiracy to defraud,” and the defendant received no specific notice of the crimes charges.

FALSE DECLARATIONS

8. For a third party to make a successful claim for restitution based on defendant’s false statements or perjury, the party must show it
detrimentally relied on defendant’s statements.

United States v. Norris, 217 F.3d 262 (5th Cir. June 26, 2000).

Defendant was the district attorney for a Louisiana parish and a partner in a Louisiana law firm. He misappropriated $500,000 from the law firm’s partnerships accounts. The partners discovered the misappropriation and obtained a money judgment against him. When they subsequently sought to enforce the judgment through an involuntary bankruptcy proceeding, defendant claimed he had

already “spent” the money in dispute. At later hearings, he claimed that by “spent,” he meant that he had burned the $500,000. He was convicted of

making false declarations in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1623 and was ordered to pay approximately $490,000 in restitution to his former law partners. 
Defendant complained on appeal to the fifth circuit that the district court erred in finding that his former law partners were victims of his perjury offenses, thereby enabling them to obtain the restitution order. He claimed that false statements in judicial proceedings do not cause economic losses and that the losses sustained by his former law partners were not traceable to his perjured statements. 
The appeal turned on who was a victim of defendant’s statements within the meaning of the perjury statute, 18 U.S.C. § 3663. The court cited United States v. Glinsey, 209 F.3d 386 (5th Cir. 2000) in declaring restitution was proper only if the law partners were “directly and proximately harmed as a result of” defendant’s false statements. The court noted that the law partners would have been harmed by defendant’s false statements only if they had detrimentally relied on the information. Because it was apparent that neither the partners, nor the bankruptcy trustee, nor the bankruptcy court itself ever believed defendant’s claim that he burned the money, his statements did not cause any losses to the partners, who were, therefore, not victims. Accordingly, as the purpose of restitution is to put the victim “in the same position as if the illegal activity had not occurred,” and restitution would fail to do so in this case, the restitution order was

reversed. The court, however, was careful to note that its holding did not foreclose the possibility of imposing restitution for losses actually sustained by

victims of perjury.
